
09.08.2016: Page 1 of 5 

 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 September 8, 2016 

The Planning Commission convened in Courtroom No. 1 at City Hall for their regular meeting.   Chairman 
Komjati called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM.  He asked the secretary to call the roll.  Members in 
attendance were Mr. Wainwright, Ms. Hada, Ms. Kuhlmann, Ms. Fleck and Chairman Komjati.  Also 
present were the Interim City Manager/Community Development Director Douglas Lewis, City Planner 
Lynn White, Assistant Law Director James Lyons, and Secretary Tina B. Pomfrey.  

MINUTES:  Chairman Komjati asked for additions or corrections for the Planning Commission Meeting 
of  July 7, 2016.   There being none, he asked for a motion. Motion by Mr. Wainwright, seconded by Ms. 
Fleck, to accept the Planning Commission Meeting  Minutes from July 7, 2016 as written. Chairman 
Komjati asked the Secretary to call the roll. On Roll Call, Ms. Hada, Ms. Kuhlmann, Mr. Wainwright, Ms. 
Fleck and Chairman Komjati answered “yes”.  Motion carried, 5-0.  Motion by Ms. Hada, second by Ms. 
Kuhlmann, to accept the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from August 11, 2016.  On Roll Call, 
Ms. Kuhlmann, Mr. Wainwright, Ms. Fleck, Ms. Hada and Chairman Komjati answered “yes”.  Motion 
carried, 5-0. 

TABLED BUSINESS: (Public Hearing Items) 

REFUSAL NO. 2285  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST 
Applicant: Robert Knopf 
Owner: Mobilite 
Location: Right of Way near 607 Williams Street (Parcel Number 15-A-003-0-00-009-0) 
District: R-1 Single Family Residential District 
Section: 1127.05 

The City of Painesville has received an application from Robert Knopf of Mobilitie for a 
Conditional Use Permit.  The applicant is proposing to install a 75-foot public utility pole for 
broadband infrastructure purposes within the right-of-way at 607 Williams Street (Permanent 
Parcel Number 15-A-003-0-00-009-0). The property is located in the R-1 Single Family Residential 
District.  Section 1143.06 (b) requires a conditional use permit for the installation of commercial 
transmissions of radio, television or communication systems in all districts. 

REFUSAL NO.  2286  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST 
Applicant: Robert Knopf 
Owner: Mobilitie 
Location: Right-of-Way near 225 E. Prospect Street (Parcel Number 15-D-010-0-00-025-0) 
District: R-1 Single Family Residential District 
Section: 1127.05 

The City of Painesville has received an application from Robert Knopf of Mobilitie for a 
Conditional Use Permit.  The applicant is proposing to install a 75-foot public utility pole for 
broadband infrastructure purposes within the right-of-way at 225 East Prospect Street (Permanent 
Parcel Number 15-D-010-0-00-025-0). The property is located in the R-1 Single Family Residential 
District.  Section 1143.06 (b) requires a conditional use permit for the installation of commercial 
transmissions of radio, television or communication systems in all districts. 

REFUSAL NO.  2287  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST 
Applicant: Robert Knopf 
Owner: Mobilitie 
Location: Right-of-Way near 701 East Erie Street (Parcel Number 15-A-008-B-00-008-0) 
District: R-1 Single Family Residential District 
Section: 1127.05 

The City of Painesville has received an application from Robert Knopf of Mobilitie for a 
Conditional Use Permit.  The applicant is proposing to install a 75-foot public utility pole for 
broadband infrastructure purposes within the right-of-way at 701 East Erie Street (Permanent 
Parcel Number 15-A-008-B-00-008-0). The property is located in the R-1 Single Family Residential 
District.  Section 1143.06 (b) requires a conditional use permit for the installation of commercial 
transmissions of radio, television or communication systems in all districts. 

At the request of the applicant, Refusals 2285-2286 and 2287 remained tabled until the next 
regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

None 

 



09.08.2016: Page 2 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT:  

 Conditional Use Permit – Review of use at 152 Main Street – Lake County Commissioners 
Office- Public use in a B-3 Central Business District. 

Ms. White stated that last year, the Planning Commission approved a storage unit in the basement at 
152 Main Street.  An expiration date of October 2016 was placed on the CUP with an option for 
renewal.  Ms. White indicated she spoke with the Economic Development Coordinator, Cathy 
Bieterman, who stated that there have been no complaints regarding the use.  Ms. Michele Pennell 
from the Lake County Auditor’s Office was present for the meeting.  She stated that they would like 
to renew the use for another year.  Ms. Fleck asked if this solution is long term or just temporary.  Ms. 
Pennell replied that they are looking for other solutions, but this location is serving the office well, as 
it is conveniently located. 

Chairman Komjati called for a motion.  Ms. Kuhlmann moved, seconded by Ms. Fleck, to renew the 
CUP for storage use at 152 Main Street.  On roll call, Ms. Fleck, Mr. Wainwright, Ms. Hada, Ms. 
Kuhlmann and Chairman Komjati answered “yes”.  Motion carried, 5-0. 

 Request for Office Use – 56 North State Street – Consolidated Investment Corp. for Goodwill 
Industries – B-3 Central Business District. 

Mr. Dan Smith from Consolidated Investment Corp, 8 North State Street, was present.  He indicated 
that they have a vacant space and Goodwill Industries job training program would like to relocate their 
office to the space.  Although the space is zoned for retail use, there has been a history of waived 
requirements in the downtown district.  Ohio Real Title and Painesville’s FOP are adjacent to the 
space.  Goodwill’s office is currently in Victoria Place, however, the new location is easily accessible, 
and being on the ground floor and its location to LakeTran bus routes is convenient. 

Chairman Komjati asked the number of employees in the office.  Mr. Smith replied two to three. 

Chairman Komjati asked for the comments of the neighborhood and the audience.  There being none, 
he asked for the comments of the City.  Ms. White stated that the City Code allows for a waiver if 
sufficient documentation is presented showing that the office use will not inhibit development of the 
retail cluster area as defined by the economic development strategy.  As there have been a number of 
office uses in the general vicinity, as recently as 2013, Ms. White stated that the Commission must 
determine if this proposed office use will not inhibit continual retail development.  Ms. White also 
pointed out that the comprehensive plan addresses this section of code and it  should be changed to 
be more strict to prohibit office uses on the ground floor in these designated areas so that exceptions 
are not granted.   

Chairman Komjati asked how much retail space is available in downtown, is there a demand for this 
space in terms of retail.  Ms. White replied she did not know.   Mr. Smith stated that since Consolidated 
owns a number of buildings in the Downtown area, if there had been inquiries related to retail in that 
space, they would have worked hard to place them in the retail space.  He said they are a strong 
proponent of the strategic plan, however, two of the retail tenants are dual purpose, having retail 
components but providing real – life vocational training to individuals and raising money in the process 
to offset the expenses. 

Ms. Fleck stated occupancy is preferable to vacancy.  She asked if it is possible to grant the use with 
the stipulation to review it again in one year.   Mr. Lyons replied that the organization that is moving 
into the space probably wants to be in that location for quite some time.  Mr. Dan Smith stated that is 
quite the contrary; the tenants only plan to use the space for about two years. Mr. Smith also mentioned 
Consolidated, at their own expense; relocates tenants to more appropriate spaces (within their 
properties) if one should come available.     

There being no further comments or questions, Chairman Komjati asked for a motion. Motion by Ms. 
Fleck moved, seconded by Ms. Kuhlmann, to approved the request for office use at 56 North State 
Street by Goodwill Industries.  On Roll Call, Mr. Wainwright, Ms. Hada, Ms. Kuhlmann, Ms. Fleck 
and Chairman Komjati answered “yes”.  Motion carried, 5-0 

 Temporary Structure and Uses:   Temporary Office trailer to provide office space at Lake 
County Committee on Family Violence 

Mr. John Dolce, 11175 Caddie Lane, Concord, Ohio was present, representing Forbes House.  He 
explained Forbes House in running out of space for offices and other activities. 

Chairman Komjati asked how long the trailer would be on the site.  Mr. Dolce indicated the plan is not 
to have it for more than a year.  Mr. Dolce mentioned that the organization would like to procure 
funding to find a larger facility.  Chairman Komjati asked Mr. Dolce if he was aware of the stipulations 
the City recommended to the Commission should they consider granting the temporary office trailer.  



09.08.2016: Page 3 of 5 

Mr. Dolce replied yes; whatever stipulations are placed on the temporary use is acceptable. 

Ms. White stated that information from Forbes House was limited regarding the size of the trailer and 
the proposed setbacks from the property lines.  Mr. Dolce stated the trailer is 50 feet.  Mr. Dolce 
explained the property in detail and discussed the proposed location.   

Chairman Komjati asked if the trailer would be used for office space.  Mr. Dolce stated yes; government 
regulations prohibit the organization from consulting with clients in the same building where they are 
housed so alternative offices must be used for client meetings. Sometimes it is difficult as many people 
arrive with only the clothes they are wearing and no transportation. The trailer would allow the staff to 
consult with the clients on the site without being in the building.  There will be two offices in the trailer 
with a small conference room between them. 

Chairman Komjati asked if Mr. Dolce had spoken with the City regarding finding space within the City 
near the facility to occupy on a more permanent basis.  Mr. Dolce replied that he had spoken with the 
Lake County Commissioners.  He also said the new executive director is looking for an alternative 
facility as this one is just too small and the layout is not very accommodating for the clients and the 
staff.   

Discussion ensued regarding the proposed location of the trailer.  Mr. Dolce said the trailer does not 
have to be as large as 50 feet, although that size would suit their needs best.  Ms. Kuhlman asked if 
they had tried to find an empty house nearby the current location.  He said he would love if someone 
had an empty building that could be moved into.  He mentioned that it is difficult to move people with 
children because of the school situation.   In addition, the current location is very convenient to bus 
stops and government services that the clients utilize.   

Ms. Hada suggested Mr. Dolce meet with Cathy Bieterman, the Economic Development Coordinator 
for the City.  She would be able to show them what is available.  Mr. Dolce replied yes, he understands 
that but the problem is funding and coming up with additional money for rent.  They currently own 
their building. 

More discussion ensued regarding the size. Mr. Dolce stated that the price of the trailer is nice; rent is 
about $300 a month. They would acquire the funds through a grant through that would allow Forbes 
House to rent a trailer without taking money from the operating budget, which is extremely limited. 

Mr. Lyons asked what the plans are for this coming year regarding space. He commented that people 
have an aversion to trailers and there is a possibility that Forbes House might have to return to the 
Commission in a year asking for an extension of time for the trailer.  Mr. Dolce stated that he realizes 
that, however, they are trying to do the best by their clients who are going through a bad situation.   

More discussion ensued regarding the aesthetics of the trailer is a residential back yard. Landscaping 
was suggested.  Mr. Dolce stated that was the plan. 

Mr. Lewis, the acting City Manager, stated that although he supports Forbes House and what they 
stand for, he does not have enough information about this to make a decision tonight.  He stressed 
that the proposed location of the trailer is in a residential neighborhood and he has concerns regarding 
how the trailer in a residential neighborhood would affect property values.   Additionally, Mr. Lewis is 
concerned that the trailer would become a permanent fixture in the yard.  Mr. Lewis asked if Cathy 
Bieterman was contacted for help.  Mr. Dolce said he could not answer the question; the proposed 
trailer is one of a few ideas to combat the situation.   

Mr. Lewis asked Mr. Dolce if the City could aid Forbes House in finding an office location similar in 
cost located off the specific property, would it be of interest to them.  Mr. Dolce replied yes, however, 
they do not like to have too many locations.   

Ms. Hada asked if the Commission could table the issue at this time while the applicant gets a site plan 
in order.  The City, in the meantime, could provide Mr. Dolce with Cathy Bieterman’s contact 
information so that the City could aid Mr. Dolce with his search.   

Ms. Fleck asked if an addition on the existing structure is feasible.  Mr. Dolce stated cost is a factor 
and office space at this time is most critical which cannot occur within the facility.  The goal is to have 
space as close to the existing facility as possible.   

Chairman Komjati recommended the applicant contact Cathy Bieterman from the Painesville 
Economic Development Office.  He said she could offer assistance to find something more suitable 
and permanent than a trailer.  If nothing can be located through Ms. Bieterman, then perhaps the 
Planning Commission can revisit the request at another meeting.   

Mr. Lyons suggested that the Planning Commission could go to the site if they so desire.  He asked if 
the funding decision was contingent on the Planning Commission giving approval for the trailer.  Mr. 
Dolce replied yes.  Discussion ensued regarding funding and the time- frame for approval.  Mr. Dolce 
said funding must be finalized by the end of October. 



09.08.2016: Page 4 of 5 

 

Mr. Wainwright said he is inclined to approve this request for one year based on all the questions 
regarding setbacks being answered.   Mr. Lyons stated this could be approved but if it cannot meet the 
setback requirements, it will still not be permitted to be installed on the site. Mr. Lyons stated that if 
someone moves to table, it takes precedence over the previous motion.  

Motion by Ms. Fleck, seconded by Ms. Hada, to table the request for Temporary Office Trailer at Lake 
County Committee on Family Violence until the next regularly scheduled meeting on October 13, 
2016.  On Roll Call, Ms. Hada, Ms. Kuhlmann, Ms. Fleck, Mr. Wainwright and Chairman Komjati 
answered “yes”.  Motion carried, 5-0. 

Chairman Komjati stated that in the interim, Mr. Dolce should meet with Ms. Bieterman and provide 
the City with the trailer’s setback information that was requested by the Planning Commission.  If help 
from Ms. Bieterman doesn’t  result in finding appropriate space, the Planning Commission will be 
prepared to take action on the trailer at next month’s Planning Commission meeting. 

 Temporary Structure and Uses: Lake County Central YMCA – 933 Mentor Avenue – storage 
units 

Mr. Dave Reho, the property manager for the Lake County Central YMCA, 933 Mentor Avenue, was 
present for the meeting.  Mr. Reho explained that the YMCA is running out of storage space, 
particularly since the location of the Painesville Senior Center has moved to the YMCA building.  
Currently, he is using a bus behind the building for storage, however, it will soon be eliminated.  At 
this time, he is requesting permission to place two (2) twenty foot trailers on the property. 

Ms. Kuhlmann asked if the trailers would be placed where the bus is currently parked.  Mr. Reho 
replied no, the trailers would be placed off to the side, adjacent to the track in the back.  He will move 
a shed to accommodate the trailers to allow easy access to them. 

Ms. White brought the Commissions attention to the site plan in the packet along with an aerial 
photograph.  She indicated that the trailers would not be visible from the road.  Ms. Hada asked if the 
residents on Chatfield Drive would be able to see them.  Mr. Reho replied that it is fenced in the back 
and a lot of bushes and growth screen the location of the trailers. 

Ms. Fleck said that the YMCA building projects out near the proposed trailer location, which will allow 
the units to “nestle” behind the building.  Ms. Fleck stated that the units look like they will be well 
hidden. 

Ms. White stated that Mr. Reho submitted an actual rendering of the storage units.  Mr. Reho added 
that they will be either gray or burgundy, but the units may be painted.  They are used, about 1 or 2 
years old.  If they are purchased, they will not have logos on them.  He said he is not certain how long 
he will need to use them but he does not have an option of building a garage. 

Mr. Lewis asked if he was purchasing them.  Mr. Reho replied yes. 

Ms. Fleck asked if this would be appropriate for a two- year review.  Ms. White replied that the applicant 
would have to return to the Planning Commission annually.  She also added a few conditions in her 
recommendation; that they be installed per the Building Official’s recommendations; that the units be 
maintained at all times in respect to the condition of the exterior and maintenance issues be addressed 
in a timely manner; that they reapply for the temporary permit on an annual basis for the duration of 
storage units. 

Mr. Reho asked if the City would notify him for permit renewal.  Ms. White replied that the City would 
notify him so that he can update the Planning Commission. 

Motion by Ms. Hada, seconded by Ms. Kuhlmann, to approve the temporary structure and use for the 
Lake County YMCA.  On Roll Call, Ms. Kuhlmann, Ms. Fleck, Mr. Wainwright, Ms. Hada and 
Chairman Komjati answered “yes”.  Motion carried, 5-0. 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT:  

Ms. White included a list of the Design Review applications received to date.  She stated that a variance 

application was submitted by the Lake County Commissioners office for a new Administration 

Building to be placed where the Senior Center currently stands.   The height of the structure is limited 

to 75 feet and the Commissioners are requesting a 93-foot structure.  If granted, the County will move 

forward with design of structure.  Ms. White said she is requesting the Commissioner’s office appear 

before Planning Commission to explain their long- range plans as part of the Design Review District. 

Ms. White reminded the Planning Commission that there is a work session scheduled for September 

22, 2016 at 6:30 pm in the conference room.  



09.08.2016: Page 5 of 5 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:39 pm. 

 

 
   

Tina B. Pomfrey, Secretary  David Komjati, Chairman 

 


